Greater Cleveland 1240 West 6th Street
Regional Transit Authority Cleveland, Ohio 44113-1302
Phone: 216-566-5100

riderta.com

MEETING NOTICE

Notice is hereby given that the following meeting of the Board of Trustees of the Greater Cleveland
Regional Transit Authority will take place on Tuesday, September 15, 2020 in the Board Room
of the Authority, 1240 West Sixth Street, Cleveland, OH 44113 for consideration of the listed items
and such other items that may properly come before the Board and be acted upon.

In accordance with House Bill 197 of the 133rd General Assembly, signed by the Governor of the
State of Ohio on March 27, 2020, the March 9, 2020 order of the Governor of the State of Ohio
declaring a public health emergency and the April 30, 2020 order of the Director of the Ohio
Department of Public Health prohibiting any gathering of ten (10) or more people, this meeting
will be live-streamed on RTA’'s Facebook page (www.facebook.com/rideRTA) for staff and
members of the public. Only Board members and required RTA staff will be allowed in the
Board Room. The meeting package will be posted on RTA'’s website at (www.riderta.com/board),
on RTA’s Facebook page, and RTA’s Twitter page.

9:00 AM. Board of Trustees — agenda attached.

ndia L. Birdsong
General Manager, Chief Executive Officer

ILB:tab
Attachment



AGENDA

RTA Board of Trustees Meeting
Tuesday, September 15, 2020

9:00 a.m.

. Callto order
Il. RollCall
lll.  Certification regarding notice of meeting
IV. Approval of the Tuesday, August 25, 2020 Board Meeting minutes
V. Public comments (2 minutes) on agenda items can be phoned in using the dial-

in information or submitted via form at www.riderta.com/events by selecting the
meeting date:

Phone: 1-818-794-7004
Meeting Number: 2699
Pin Number: 926561

VI. Board Governance Committee report

VIl.  Operational Planning & Infrastructure Committee report
e Chair: Mr. Terence P. Joyce

VIll.  Organizational, Services & Performance Monitoring Committee report
e Chair: Rev. Charles P. Lucas

IX.  Audit, Safety Compliance and Real Estate Committee report
e Chair: Karen Gabriel Moss

X. External and Stakeholder Relations and Advocacy Committee report
¢ Chair: Valarie J. McCall

Xl.  Community Advisory Committee (CAC)
e Board Liaison: Justin M. Bibb

Xil.  Ad Hoc Committee reports
¢ Ad Hoc Paratransit Committee — Rev. Charles P. Lucas, Chair
e Ad Hoc Technology Committee — Justin M. Bibb, Chair
X, Introduction of new employees and announcement of promotions

XIV. Introduction of resolutions:



RTA Board of Trustees
September 15, 2020
Page 2

XV.

XVL

XVII.
XVIHIL.

XiX.

XXI.

A.  2020-71 — Authorizing Contract No. 2020-078 with Jadco Construction
Services, Inc. for Project 18.73 — Main Office Building parking garage
repairs, as specified and as required, in an amount not to exceed
$292,850.00 (RTA Development Fund, Engineering & Project Development
Department budget)

B. 2020-72 - Authorizing Contract No. 2020-126 with Dell Marketing, LP for the
purchase of a Microsoft Enterprise License agreement through the State of
Ohio, Department of Administrative Services, Cooperative Purchasing
Program, as specified, in an amount NTE $477,540.00 for 10 months and in
an amount NTE $573,048.00 for an additional one-year for a total contract
amount NTE $1,050,588.00 for the one year and ten month period (General
Fund, Information Technology, Department budget)

C. 2020-73 - Authorizing Contract No. 2020-128 with GIRO, Inc. for HASTUS
software upgrade services in an amount not to exceed $1,314,402.00 (RTA
Development Fund, Intelligent Transportation Systems Department budget)

Executive Session Requested:
e To consider the purchase of property for public purposes or the sale of
property at competitive bidding.

Interim Secretary-Treasurer's Report:

General Fund Revenue — status as of August 31, 2020 versus 2019 actuals
General Fund Revenue — status as of August 31, 2020 versus the 2020
budget

Sales & Use Tax Receipts Report budgeted during 2020, actual receipts
through September 2020 ***TO BE DISTRIBUTED AT A LATER DATE***
Inventory of Treasury Investments as of August 31, 2020

Debt Service Schedule and Status of Bond Retirement Fund (cash basis) as
of August 31, 2020

Summary of Investment Performance, Year to Date through August 31,
2020

G. Report on Investment Earnings (cash basis) as of August, 2020

H.  Composition of Investment Portfolio as of August 31, 2020

mo O w»

il

General Manager’s Report

President’'s Report

Old Business

New Business

Public comments (2 minutes) on non-agenda items can be phoned in using the

dial-in information or submitted via form at www.riderta.com/events by selecting
the meeting date:




RTA Board of Trustees
September 15, 2020
Page 3

Phone: 1-818-794-7004
Meeting Number: 2699
Pin Number: 926561

XXIl. The next regular Board meeting is scheduled for Tuesday, October 27, 2020 in
the Board Room of the Authority, Root-McBride Building, 1240 West Sixth Street,
Cleveland, Ohio 44113. This meeting will be live-streamed on RTA's Facebook
page (www.facebook.com/rideRTA) for staff and members of the public. Only
Board members and required RTA staff will be allowed in the Board Room.

XX, Adjournment



Minutes
RTA Board of Trustees Meeting
9:38 a.m., August 25, 2020
Present: Clough (Chair), Lucas (Vice Chair), Bibb, Byrne, Joyce, McCall, Moss, Pellot, Serrano, Weiss

Not present: None

Also Present: Anderson, Benford, Birdsong, Bober, Burney, Caver, Cottrell, Cox, Dangelo, Davidson,
Davis, Dietrich, Fields, Garofoli, Gautam, Kirkland, Manning, Montgomery, Moore, Pickett, Schipper,

Sutula, Woodford

Mayor Clough said that Senator Dolan is on the line. He will update the Board on what is going on with the
State. He has been a strong advocate for transit to ensure we received funding over the last few years.

Senator Dolan

Senator Dolan called in. He thanked RTA for how they have stepped up to serve the public. In the last
budget, they were able to move public transportation from the transportation budget, which is solely funded
by the Gas Tax, to the General Revenue (GR) budget, which is paid for by the other state taxes. They
were able to increase the allocation for public transit to $70 million a year. When they did that, they had
revenue projections for the remaining two years that would easily meet the $70 miillion a year, but when the
Pandemic hit in March, it changed the budget. The issues with the budget would be the same even if
transportation had not moved to the GR budget because gas tax revenue is down. They want fo help RTA
get through the rest of year. Hopefully the CARES dollars received has allowed for addressing emergency

issues at the Authority.

The current budget goes through June 30, 2021. They are setting the revenues for fiscal year 2021. The
first two months suggest a good pace. He believes that is a result of the Stimulus checks, unemployment
checks and pint up consumer frustration. With all of these slightly diminishing, there may be a dip in State
revenues in December. They have a Rainy Day (RD) fund, but it is also the Budget Stabilization Fund.
There is dialogue going on as to how to use those dollars. He believes the RD fund is designed to meet
promises to entities like the RTA who made decisions based on what it thought the revenues would be. He
wants to use the money to fill those obligations and not to use the RD fund as one-time monies to build
next year's budget. It is his hope to meet RTA’s expected revenues in the fiscal year 2021 and whatever
the next budget cycle proves to be, they will argue that next spring. It is not built on one-time money and

RTA can make decisions going forward.

RTA has a compelling story, but it needs to be broadened. He believes the NE Ohio legislatures are
comfortable that RTA is providing a great service. He is grateful for the RTA staff, which has been
responsive to the idea of the system redesign to match up with the needs. He has communicated to his
members that public transportation is essential to the education, healthcare and the economy of mainly
urban areas and also suburban and urban areas and that a failure to continue to invest in that is a failure to
invest in the earlier mentioned areas. As they prepare for the budget, he suggest RTA staff visit Columbus
to tell the story of public transportation. The efforts made in Cleveland can be duplicated throughout the
State. Education of members is essential. The suburban and urban legislators get it, but there are a lot of
rural legislators that need to hear RTA’s story. The work RTA is doing is set up beautifully. He and Rep.
Skindell argued to tell the story of the flexibility to change the system routes. Terence O’'Donneli does a
great job. Having Board members present with the advocacy agency to tell the story makes a difference.

Mayor Clough thanked him for the advice. Mr. Bibb asked if there were other members from the
legislatures from the rural parts of the State who would like a tour of NE Ohio and the work RTA is doing.
Rep. Dolan suggested Sen. Matt Huffman of the Allen County, Lima area. He represents a rural area and
the rural legislatures look to him.



RTA Board of Trustees
August 25, 2020
Page 2 of 7

Mayor Clough called the meeting to order at 9:38 a.m. The secretary called the roll and reported that ten
(10) board members were present. This meeting was conducted by teleconference for members of the
Board in accordance with House Bill 197 of the 133rd General Assembly, signed by the Governor of the
State of Ohio on March 27, 2020, the March 9, 2020 order of the Governor of the State of Ohio declaring a
public health emergency and the April 30, 2020 order of the Director of the Ohio Department of Public
Health prohibiting any gathering of ten (10) or more people. This meeting was live-streamed on RTA’s
Facebook page (www.facebook.com/rideRTA) for staff and members of the public.

The Secretary advised that notice of this meeting have been posted more than twenty-four hours in
advance of the meeting, that the usual notification has been given the news media and other interested
persons, and that all requirements of the Ohio Revised Code and Rules and Bylaws of this Board
regarding notice of meeting have been complied with.

Minutes

Mayor Clough stated that the minutes from the July 28, 2020 Board Meeting had been previously
distributed and reviewed and asked whether there were any additions and/or corrections. There were no

corrections. The minutes were approved.

Public Comments — Agenda ltems

1. Joshua Jones — Concerning agenda item: Resolution 2020-68 to amend “Commissions and Fare

Structure” of Codified Rules and Regulations

o | ask the RTA Board not to increase fares in 2021 and 2022. Our fares are too expensive when
compared to residents' incomes in Cleveland and the transit service we receive.

» | ask the RTA Board not to continue the pending fare increase that has been suspended since
2018. Instead, RTA should reduce fares further to bring back riders, avoiding the transit death
spiral pattern.

Agenda item regarding the Audit, Safety Compliance and Real Estate Committee report:

* | ask the RTA to implement transit ambassadors instead of transit police. This is safer, less
expensive, compliant with civil rights, and would address the proof-of-payment service that has
lapsed on the HealthLine for years now. Transit ambassadors are proven effective in other
cities and would make me feel safer than police do when | ride.

Mr. Bibb asked if the CAC could be used to test out the issues with the dial-in process for public
comments. Mayor Clough mention that it worked at the last few meetings.

Committee Reports
The Governance Committee met earlier this month. The agenda involved compensation of an employee.

it will be discussed later today.

Community Advisory Committee (CAC)

Mr. Bibb thanked Maribeth Feke for engaging the CAC with the consultant on the 25 Connects West TOD
project. He thanked Rev. Lucas’s CAC ADA members who piloting the new paratransit coaches and gave
good feedback. Members of the CAC have been actively involved with RTA on assembling mask for

riders.

Ad Hoc Committee Reports
Mr. Bibb is pleased with the great work of the Ad Hoc Technology team (Pete Anderson, Dr. Caver and

Mike Lively) on the efforts around data, transparency and analytics. The Tech committee will meet this
week to discuss the pilot open data transparency portal. Secondly, his committee will work with Dr. Caver
to look at body cams and a Transit Police civilian review board.



RTA Board of Trustees
August 25, 2020

Page 3 of 7

Introduction of New Employees/Promotions

Promotions

Justin Krehel - Equipment Repair Leader - Operations

Robin Dietz - Transit Police Sergeant - Operations

Daveda Bencs - Manager — Transportation - Operations

Lisa Townes - Manager — Transportation - Operations

Maurice Hudson - Transit Police Sergeant — Operations

Mabry Harris — Procurement Team Leader — Finance & Administration

Qb wN

New Employees
1. Thomas Rafferty lll - Manager of Payroll
2. Patrick Coffey - User Support Specialist

Mayor Clough congratulated the promotions and welcomed the new employees.

Introduction of Resolutions

A

2020-60 — Expressing congratulations to Chief John P. Joyce upon his retirement from the
Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority, expressing appreciation for his years of
dedicated and loyal service, and extending best wishes for his future endeavors, the adoption
of which was moved by Mr. Serrano, seconded by Mr. Bibb and approved by unanimous vote.

Chief Joyce said it has always been a challenge, exhilarating and a honor to protect and
serve. Mayor Clough expressed his appreciation for Chief Joyce’ retirement. Ms. Birdsong
thanked him for his service and guidance over the years.

2020-61 — Authorizing Contract No. 2020-046 with New Flyer of America Inc. forthe
manufacture and delivery of up to seven (7) five (5) door 60-ft. articulated BRT coaches, spare
parts, tooling and training in an amount not to exceed $7,154,341.63 with options to procure
up to twenty-one (21) additional coaches, spare parts, tooling and training, to be delivered
over the five (5) year term of the contract (RTA Development Fund, Fieet Management
Department budget), the adoption of which was moved by Mr. Serrano, seconded by Mr.
Joyce and approved by unanimous vote.

2020-62 — Authorizing Contract No. 2020-079 with K&J Safety and Security Consulting
Services, Inc. for Project 66A2 — consultant services for safety and security certification — new
railcar fleet in an amount not to exceed $398,480.00 (RTA Development Fund, Engineering &
Project Development Department budget), the adoption of which was moved by Mr. Serrano,
seconded by Chief McCall and approved by unanimous vote.

Ms. Moss asked for a brief overview. Dr. Caver said this will allow for a consultant for the
purchase of railcars to do safety sign offs on the safety critical aspects. This is required by the
FTA to purchase and accept the rail cars. This contractor has done similar duties in other

aspects for rail.

2020-63 — Authorizing Contract No. 2020-086 with Relam Inc. for the furnishing of a rail spiker
machine, as specified and as required, in an amount not to exceed $398,740.00 (RTA
Development Fund, Power & Way Department budget), the adoption of which was moved by
Mr. Serrano, seconded by Mr. Bibb and approved by unanimous vote.

2020-64 — Authorizing Contract No. 2020-090 with the W.W. Williams Co., LLC, for the
furnishing of dual power inverter module(s), as specified and as may be required, for a period
of two (2) years in an amount not to exceed $188,428.00 (General Fund, Fleet Management



RTA Board of Trustees
August 25, 2020

Page 4 of 7

Department budget), the adoption of which was moved by Mr. Joyce, seconded by Ms. Moss
and approved by unanimous vote.

This equipment is on the HealthLine vehicles. It takes the DC Power from the battery pack
and changes it to AC power to run the AC motors.

2020-65 ~ Authorizing Contract No. 2020-093 with Swiger Coil Systems, a Wabtec Co. for the
furnishing of track brake coil rewind services, as specified and as required, for a period of two
(2) years in an amount not to exceed $192,720.00 (General Fund, Rail District Department
budget), the adoption of which was moved by Chief McCall, seconded by Mayor Weiss and
approved by unanimous vote.

2020-66 — Authorizing Contract No. 2020-110 with Oracle America, Inc. for Oracle Cloud
software as a service in an amount not to exceed $610,647.60 for the base one-year term and
option years one and two, and in an amount not to exceed $622,860.55 for option years three
and four, for a total five-year contract price not to exceed $3,077,663.90 (RTA Development
Fund, Information Technology Department budget), the adoption of which was moved by

Mr. Serrano, seconded by Ms. Pellot and approved by unanimous vote.

This resolution and a number of others went through committee.

2020-67 — Authorizing Contract No. 2020-012 with Diversified Systems, Inc. to provide Oracle
SaaS Implementation Services in the Cloud, as specified, for a total contract amount not to
exceed $2,997,800.00 (RTA Development Fund, Information Technology Department budget),
the adoption of which was moved by Mr. Joyce, seconded by Mayor Weiss and approved by
unanimous vote.

2020-68 — Amending Chapter 840 “Commissions and Fare Structure” of the Codified Rules
and Regulations of the Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority, the adoption of which
was moved by Mr. Serrano, seconded by Mr. Joyce.

Mr. Bibb said that immediate fare relief is good, but noticed that there will be an increase in
2021. Until the data is in on the impact on ridership and how the immediate fare relief will
impact the volume on service, he does not think it beneficial to premature a potential increase.
Dr. Caver said this resolution would attempt to preserve the Board’s former process and policy
whereby there was a two-step fare increase. The last fare increase was scheduled for 2018.
This resolution allows that to occur with the Board's approval. But as in the last two years, it
would be brought back to the Board three months prior to. In the current budget process from
the Tax Budget and what will be a part of the 2021 Budget process, there is no expectation
that the Board would need to invoke to increase the fares. This process allows for an
immediate fare relief that is more equitable, de-penalizing the transferring and cash payment.
If the Board chooses, they will bring it back so they can opine, but they recommendation is
that there would not have a 2021 fare increase. The Tax Budget statement of revenues does
not have a fare increase. Mr. Bibb said there should be a statement to the public on why we
are providing immediate fare relief and that the Board will weigh any potential future increases
based on the economic and ridership data.

Chief McCall agrees that it reads as if there will be fare increase. Her committee talked about
combining fares associated with All-Day trips, but not an increase. If this is passed as is, it is
not reassuring the public that we are not talking about fare increases. She said it should
either be tabled or amend it today. Ms. Benford said it could be tabled and brought back
reflecting the changes. Ms. Birdsong supports the recommendation to ensure the sentiments
of the Board are included and to discuss a media strategy in the event it is mis-interpreted by
the general public.



RTA Board of Trustees
August 25, 2020
Page 5 of 7

It was moved by Chief McCall, seconded by Mr. Serrano to table Resolution 2020-68. Mr.
Bibb asked if tabling this would affect the fare relief. Dr. Caver said it would take one month
after the time it is approved. The current process will allow the fare relief to occur October 4.
If the resolution is not approved until late September, it will push it out. Mr. Bibb asked if there
could be an emergency Board Meeting once the resolution is updated. Mayor Clough
suggested it be after the committee meetings next week. The roll was called. There was ten

(10) ayes and none opposed.

J. 2020-69 — Authorizing the purchase of casualty insurance from various insurance underwriters
through USI Insurance Services National, inc. and Price Forbes & Partners Limited, or their
successors, for a period of 12 months in a total amount not to exceed $1,892,599.00 (GCRTA
Insurance Fund, Risk Management Department budget), the adoption of which was moved by
Mr. Serrano, seconded by Ms. Moss and approved by unanimous vote.

In committees, there was a discussion on the insurance market. Since then, they have
finalized the majority of the program. This is an aggregate increase of 34%. This is a good
number given that other transit systems have received close to 100% increases. Ms. Moss
spoke to Judy and learned that some of the ranges for increases for lower ones with higher
amounts of payments, first by the Authorities and there were other agencies as high at 112%.
She has never felt comfortable with voting on this before the numbers come in, but because of
the nature of the way the market is set, she feels confident that the team and the broker did a
good job keeping it as low as possible. Mayor Clough concurred. Ms. Benford added that the
NTE amount in the resolution is the final number.

Executive Session
10:10 a.m. - Mayor Clough asked for a. motion to go into executive session to consider the appointment,

employment, dismissal, discipline, promotion, demotion, or compensation of a public employee or official.
They will look at an employee to consider a salary increase. The employee will be named if the resolution
is presented. They will add that to the agenda if it is decided to provide the increase. It was moved by
Mr. Joyce, seconded by Rev. Lucas. There was a roll call. There was ten (10) ayes and none opposed.

10:53 a.m. — It was moved by Mr. Bibb, seconded by Mr. Serrano to come out of executive session. There
was ten (10) ayes and none opposed. The following resolution was added the agenda and was read in its

entirety.

K 2020-70 - Authorizing a salary adjustment for Anthony A. Garofoli, executive director of
Internal Audit, the adoption of which was moved by Mr. Joyce, seconded by Rev. Lucas and

approved by unanimous vote.

Interim Secretary-Treasurer's Report and Acting General Manager, Chief Executive Officer Report

Dr. Caver gave the report. There has been some rebound since the March-April unemployment spikes.

As of July 2020, the US rate was 10.2%. The state was lower. The Cuyahoga number is not in yet, but is
typically higher, but is not as drastic as seen at the height of COVID-19.. The NE Ohio area is the 15t
largest market in the US and it makes up 40% of Ohio’s economy. Team NEO projected that we will
recover from the Pandemic in approximately in 2022. They also predict that the economy will come back
1o its pre COVID levels by 2025 and there will be a 9.1% drop in manufacturing, 13% drop in administrative
support, 7.7% drop in transportation and 2.4% drop in healthcare.

We have sustained a 52% reduction in ridership. In May, revenue hit a height in passenger fares of 61%
and 50% and 41% in June and July. Sales tax is currently moving well. August sales tax for the May
activity has a 2.2% reduction. We have drawn down $91.1 million to date of the $112 million. Total
revenues was up 45% as compared to budget given that we received CARES funding of $56 million in the



RTA Board of Trustees
August 25, 2020
Page 6 of 7

seconded. Total operating expenditures for the 2™ quarter was down 7.4%. The other items below
operating expenses are transfers, which is not a major importance because of timing issues, but the

transfers will be made later in the year. The increase in General Fund revenue compared to the prior year
is 44% given the CARES money. Without the CARES money, revenue would have been up 4.3% and
operating expenses compared to revenue would have been 16% of the total operating expenses.

There will be a presentation on Socially Oriented Mobility at the next Ad Hoc Tech Committee Meeting.
This is using RTA assets to assist the community in social and societal ways. Students will be learning

remotely for at least the first nine weeks of school. RTA will have free WiFi locations on its property.
Marketing is working on a campaign to get the message out. They will communicate that there will be

places they can use the Wifi free of charge to do their work. One hundred and eighty buses (180), which is

the entire bus fleet and most rail cars have fee Wifi. Ms. Birdsong added that the WiFi connection is
important to students and the community. She asked if any Board member had any ideas as far as

offering this service so we can come up with real numbers as far as the usage. Mr. Bibb said to connect
with Eric Gordon of CMSD and agencies like Breakthrough to let them know that this service is available.
Ms. Birdsong said this would show the community that RTA's value is more than just buses and trains.

Public comments on non-agenda items

Comments were received via email.

1.

Steven Norris - Please do not increase fares. Since fares are already high, look to reduce them
instead of increasing them. Fares are not the majority of revenue and reducing fares should help
with declining ridership. Also, please use transit ambassadors to address fare issues instead of
transit police. The court system is already stressed due to over policing.

Christopher Stocking — Cleveland, OH — He sent the Board a flyer to an event sponsored by
TransitCenters called "Women’s Safety on Transit: Alternative Models to Policing” on Tues, Sept 1
at4 p.m. Alink to register was included. It will feature women that work at transit agencies around
the country. You can find more information and RSVP at www.transitcenter.org or by the link he

provided.

LaQuita Worley-Bell — | am not in agreement of doing a FARE increase!!! Please don't go up on our
fare 1!l We are in a good spot in the economy. This is a terrible time!! The cost of living is going
up!, but our income is not 1!l | can assure you at RTA, everything will continue to down spiral. This
is not good news.

Bob Ross — Fair fares are a great thing. Why for one year only? Fares are projected to increase in
2021. This is a past practice and needs to stop. Make the decrease permanent, Work on further
lowering fares even more. Safety for operators and riders is important. A redistribution of cost
might be in order. Consideration of a Transit Captains program would be a benefit. The redesign
system needs to be implemented. The Jarrett Walker redesign was finalized almost a year ago.
GCRTA needs to increase service to areas that have the most need and further reductions in fares
as ridership increases could be achieved. Congratulations to Senator Dolan for increased funding
through a redistribution of the gas tax.

Chris Martin, Cleveland, OH — Board members, thank you for tabling the fare increase resolution.
Take this time, now, to commit to decreasing fares immediately and keeping them that way.

Dr. Caver clarified that the fare resolution was a decrease not an increase.

Robert Winn - | am writing today to provide comments regarding the public comment system
currently implemented for RTA board meetings and the proposed fare changes that have been
tabled. Putting these meetings online has increased accessibility and transparency, but there
needs to be a more consistently reliable method of allowing members of the public to submit public



RTA Board of Trustees
August 25, 2020
Page 7 of 7

comments that is accessible to members of the public whether they have the ability to dial in or to
make scheduled meeting times. The ever changing and sometimes functioning public comment
system that RTA has been using has been unreliable and incredibly frustrating. Please consider
allowing comments to be submitted via both email and phone comments by default for ali future

board meetings.

Secondly, in the future, when considering fare increases it would be helpful to only propose fare
modifications that are intended to be implemented. In this case, the $5 day pass reduction -- if the
other changes are problematic or unlikely to be approved in future years, it would make sense to
come back to the board (and the public) with what is being proposed.

The 2016 fare increase appears to have been essentially revenue neutral -- those who have
continued to ride and support RTA have paid the price, both in terms of increased fares and
decreased mobility as RTA has continued to reduce service. In it's current form, RTA riders could
be paying as much for a monthly pass as Chicago transit riders in 2021 - but there is a big
difference between the frequency and level of service being offered by an agency like CTA and
RTA, which includes many infrequent routes such as the 55 -- a "bus rapid transit" route that offers

only hourly mid-day weekday service.

| am also troubled that there doesn't appear to have been any attempt to seek input from RTA's
Community Advisory Committee regarding this proposal. One of the CAC's purposes includes
making recommendations to the Board of Trustees "on fare changes, Long-Range Plan updates,
and major or new projects" but that doesn't appear to have happened here. Please consider not
only tabling this resolution, but asking RTA staff to create a new proposal that includes only the
October 2020 changes, but postponing any fare increases until appropriate analysis can be
performed and the public and CAC can be better engaged.

Upcoming Meetings

The next regular Board meeting is scheduled for Tuesday, September 15, 2020 in the Board Room of the
Authority, Root-McBride Building, and 1240 West Sixth Street, Cleveland, Ohio 44113. This meeting will
be live streamed on RTA’s Facebook page for staff and members of the public. Only Board members and
required RTA staff will be allowed in the Board Room.

This meeting was adjourned at 10:23 a.m.

4 President
Attest: WMO »4 . 0 resien

interim Secretary-Treasurer




01’7%‘;‘_30'326 Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority
STAFF SUMMARY AND COMMENTS

TITLE/DESCRIPTION: Resolution No.:
CONTRACT: PROJECT 18.73 — MAIN OFFICE BUILDING PARKING 2020-71
GARAGE REPAIRS Date:

VENDOR: JADCO CONSTRUCTION SERVICES, INC. September 10, 2020

AMOUNT:  $292,850.00 Initiator:
Engineering & Project
Development

ACTION REQUEST:

Approval 0O Review/Comment 0O Information Only [ Other

1.0 PURPOSE/SCOPE: This action will allow the Authority to enter into a contract to provide
construction services for Project 18.73 — Main Office Building Parking Garage Repairs.

2.0 DESCRIPTION/JUSTIFICATION: The work to be performed under this contract consists of the
rehabilitation of GCRTA's portion of the parking garage at 701 W. Lakeside Ave., Cleveland, OH.
Work performed under this scope will include repairing the concrete and drains to the surface of
the deck above. Additionally, repairs will be made to the ceiling in selected areas on the ground
floor where concrete has loosened due to water penetration.

3.0 PROCUREMENT BACKGROUND: The Invitation for Bid (“IFB”) was posted on the GCRTA
Procurement website and advertised in the local newspapers. Fifteen interested patrties,
including potential subcontractors, downloaded the solicitation package. Five responsive bids
were received and opened on July 23, 2020, as follows:

Company Name Total Base Bid
Jadco Construction Services, Inc. $292.850.00
JT Thorpe $315,776.51
Western Specialty Contractors $330,984.00
Cleveland Building Restoration $353,618.00
Schirmer Construction LLC $388,000.00

The Basis of Award is the lowest responsive bid from a responsible bidder for the Total Base Bid
price. Jadco Construction Services, Inc. was determined to be a responsible bidder. The Total
Base Bid price of $292,850.00 from Jadco Construction Services, Inc. is 22% less than the
Engineer’s Estimate of $375,602.00.

4.0 AFFIRMATIVE ACTION/DBE BACKGROUND: All Affirmative Action requirements have
been met. A 19% DBE goal was established for this procurement. Jadco Construction
Services, Inc. has committed to achieving the DBE participation through the utilization of
JT Dillard (African American-Male) in the amount of $33,600.00 and Pro Construction
(African American-Male) in the amount of $22,400.00 for a total of $56,000.00 or 19%.

5.0 POLICY IMPACT: Does not apply.
6.0 ECONOMIC IMPACT: This procurement shall be payable through the RTA Development

Fund, Engineering & Project Development Department budget, including but not limited
to 100% local funds, for a total contract amount not to exceed $292,850.00.



Staff Summary & Comments 2020-71
Main Office Building Parking Garage Repairs
Page 2

7.0 ALTERNATIVES: Reject this offer. Rejection of this offer will allow for the continued safety
concerns and degradation of the GCRTA parking garage.

8.0 RECOMMENDATION: It is recommended that the bid of Jadco Construction Services,
Inc. be accepted and the resolution passed authorizing the General Manager, Chief
Executive Officer to enter into a contract.

9.0 ATTACHMENTS: None.

Recommended and certified as appropriate to the availability
of funds, legal form and conformance with the Procurement
requirements.

Ggheral Manager, Chief Execltive-Officer




RESOLUTION NO. 2020-71

AUTHORIZING CONTRACT NO. 2020-078 WITH JADCO CONSTRUCTION
SERVICES, INC. FOR PROJECT 18.73 — MAIN OFFICE BUILDING PARKING
GARAGE REPAIRS, AS SPECIFIED AND AS REQUIRED, IN AN AMOUNT
NOT TO EXCEED $292,850.00 (RTA DEVELOPMENT FUND, ENGINEERING
& PROJECT DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT BUDGET)

WHEREAS, the Authority deems it necessary to acquire construction services, as
required, under Project 18.73 — Main Office Building Parking Garage Repairs; and

WHEREAS, the bid of Jadco Construction Services, Inc., located at 9901 York Theta
Drive, North Royalton, Ohio 44133, was received on July 16, 2020 in an amount not to exceed
$292 850.00; and

WHEREAS, the General Manager, Chief Executive Officer deems the bid of Jadco
Construction Services, Inc. to be the lowest responsive bid from a responsible bidder and
recommends acceptance thereof by the Board of Trustees.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Trustees of the Greater
Cleveland Regional Transit Authority, Cuyahoga County, Ohio:

Section 1. That the bid of Jadco Construction Services, Inc. for Project 18.73 Main
Office Building Parking Garage Repairs, be and the same is hereby accepted.

Section 2. That the General Manager, Chief Executive Officer of the Authority be and
she is hereby authorized to enter into a contract with Jadco Construction Services, Inc. for
Project 18.73 — Main Office Building Parking Garage Repairs.

Section 3. That said contract shall be payable from the RTA Development Fund,
Engineering & Project Development Department budget, including but not limited to 100% local
funds, for a total contract amount not to exceed $292,850.00.

Section 4. That said contract shall be binding upon and an obligation of the Authority
contingent upon future funding, compliance by the contractor to the Specifications and
Addenda, thereto, if any; the Affirmative Action Plan adopted by the Board of Trustees; bonding
and insurance requirements; and all applicable laws relating to the contractual obligations of the
Authority.

Section 5. That the Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority’s Board of Trustees
expects that Jadco Construction Services, Inc. will attempt to exceed the 19% minimum DBE
goal assigned to this procurement.

Section 6. That this resolution shall become effective immediately upon its adoption.

Adopted: September 15, 2020

President

Attest:

Interim Secretary-Treasurer



Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority
oroner l\Tll STAFF SUMMARY AND COMMENTS

TITLE/DESCRIPTION: Resolution No.:
CONTRACT: MICROSOFT ENTERPRISE LICENSE AGREEMENT TO | 2020-72
ADD ACCESS OF M365 PRODUCTS Date:
VENDOR:  DELL MARKETING, LP ‘S:_pttembe' 10, 2020
nigator:
AMOUNT:  AMOUNT NTE $477,540.00 FOR TEN MONTHS nformati
AND IN AN AMOUNT NTE $573,048.00 FOR AN _Peg;“r:; g;f;

ADDITIONAL ONE-YEAR, FOR A TOTAL
CONTRACT AMOUNT NTE $1,050,588.00 FOR
THE ONE YEAR AND TEN MONTH PERIOD

Approval [ Review/Comment [ Information Only 0O Other

ACTION REQUEST:

1.0

2.0

3.0

PURPOSE/SCOPE: This resolution will allow the Authority to enter into a contract to add
access of Microsoft's M365 products to GCRTA'’s available applications through the
furnishing of a Microsoft Enterprise License Agreement from the State of Ohio,
Department of Administrative Services, Cooperative Purchasing Agreement for a period of
one year and ten months, to run co-terminus with GCRTA's existing Microsoft Enterprise
License Agreement (EA).

DESCRIPTION/JUSTIFICATION: In 2019, the Authority entered into a three-year
Microsoft Enterprise License Agreement (EA) with Dell Marketing, LP, one of Microsoft’s
License Partners in Ohio. The Authority’s current PCs and the majority of its file servers
use Microsoft Operating Systems and applications to conduct daily business across the
Authority. The 2019 agreement included the following: Windows Desktop Operating
Systems; Microsoft Office Professional Plus Products (Word, Excel, PowerPoint, Access,
etc.) and PowerBI; Microsoft SQL Server and Client Access Licenses (CALs); Windows
Server Operating Systems, and Client Access Licenses (CALs); and VDI licenses and
Remote Desktop Licenses. This request for a second Microsoft Enterprise Agreement is
to be co-terminus with GCRTA'’s existing three-year EA agreement. The new EA adds
Microsoft's M365 products to the Authority’s available applications. In particular, this gives
the Authority access to the Office 365 suite of cloud-based applications, Microsoft
Exchange online, Microsoft Teams, Sharepoint, OneDrive, OneNote, and many other
applications and services. Because these applications are cloud-based, they are
accessible from anywhere, affording the Authority greater flexibility, improved Disaster
Recovery and Continuity of Operations, and always-current functionality, not to mention
better collaboration, and greater efficiency. In addition to the benefits listed above,
standardization on the Microsoft platform and further adoption of cloud technology and
standardization are central to GCRTA’s Technology Roadmap, allowing for modernization
of GCRTA’s business processes and transformation of service.

PROCUREMENT BACKGROUND: Section 306.43 (H)(4) of the Ohio Revised Code
provides political subdivisions within the State of Ohio, the opportunity to participate in
contracts executed by the State of Ohio, Department of Administrative Services, for the
purchase of supplies, services, equipment, and certain materials. Resolution No. 1990-69
gives authorization to the General Manager, Chief Executive Officer to utilize the State of
Ohio Cooperative Purchasing Program. The amount is not to exceed $477,540.00 for ten
months and in an amount not to exceed $573,048.00 for an additional one-year, for a total
contract amount not to exceed $1,050,588.00 for the one-year and ten months period.




Staff Summary & Comments 2020-72
Microsoft Enterprise License Agreement to

Add Access of Microsoft M365 Products

Page 2

4.0

5.0

6.0

7.0

8.0

9.0

AFFIRMATIVE ACTION/DBE BACKGROUND: The Office of Business Development
does not conduct Affirmative Action reviews or establish goals on procurements included
in the State of Ohio Cooperative Purchasing Program.

POLICY IMPACT: Does not apply.

ECONOMIC IMPACT: The contract shall be payable through the General Fund,
Information Technology Department budget, in an amount not to exceed $477,540.00 for
ten months and in an amount not to exceed $573,048.00 for an additional one-year, for a
total contract amount not to exceed $1,050,588.00 for the one-year and ten months
period.

ALTERNATIVES: Reject this offer. Rejection of this offer would limit the Authority to
using only its existing Microsoft software and prevent the adoption of modern tools and
processes. Rejection would also pose significant security and business risks, impact user
productivity, and increase the support effort and cost to maintain the systems.

RECOMMENDATION: This procurement was discussed by the Board of Trustees at the
September 1, 2020 Organizational Services & Performance Monitoring Committee
meeting. It is recommended that the offer of Dell Marketing, LP be accepted and the
resolution passed authorizing the General Manager, Chief Executive Officer to enter into a
contract.

ATTACHMENTS: None.

Recommended and certified as appropriate to the
availability of funds, legal form and conformance with the
Procurement requirements.

e S22

Genéral Manager, Chief Execufive Officer




RESOLUTION NO. 2020-72

AUTHORIZING CONTRACT NO. 2020-126 WITH DELL MARKETING, LP FOR
THE PURCHASE OF A MICROSOFT ENTERPRISE LICENSE AGREEMENT
THROUGH THE STATE OF OHIO, DEPARTMENT OF ADMINISTRATIVE
SERVICES, COOPERATIVE PURCHASING PROGRAM, AS SPECIFIED, IN AN
AMOUNT NTE $477,540.00 FOR 10 MONTHS AND IN AN AMOUNT NTE
$573,048.00 FOR AN ADDITIONAL ONE-YEAR FOR A TOTAL CONTRACT
AMOUNT NTE $1,050,588.00 FOR THE ONE YEAR AND TEN MONTH
PERIOD (GENERAL FUND, INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY, DEPARTMENT
BUDGET)

WHEREAS, the Authority requires the ability to add Microsoft's M365 products to its
available applications via a Microsoft Enterprise License Agreement; and

WHEREAS, the Microsoft Enterprise License Agreement is available through the State
of Ohio, Department of Administrative Services, Cooperative Purchasing Program through Dell
Marketing, LP, located at One Dell Way, Round Rock, TX 78680, in an amount not to exceed
$477,540.00 for ten months and in an amount not to exceed $573,048.00 for an additional one-
year for a total contract amount not to exceed $1,050,588.00 for the one-year and ten months
contract term; and

WHEREAS, Section 306.43 (H)(4) of the Ohio Revised Code provides political
subdivisions within the State of Ohio, the opportunity to participate in contracts executed by the
State of Ohio, Department of Administrative Services; and

WHEREAS, the Board of Trustees authorized utilization of the State of Ohio Cooperative
Purchasing Program in Resolution No.1990-69; and

WHEREAS, the General Manager, Chief Executive Officer deems it is in the best
interest of the Authority to procure the Microsoft Enterprise License Agreement from Dell
Marketing, LP utilizing the State of Ohio Cooperative Purchasing Program and recommends
acceptance thereof by the Board of Trustees.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Trustees of the Greater
Cleveland Regional Transit Authority, Cuyahoga County, Ohio:

Section 1. That the offer of Dell Marketing, LP for furnishing a Microsoft Enterprise
License Agreement for a period of one year and ten months be and the same is hereby
accepted.

Section 2. That the General Manager, Chief Executive Officer of the Authority be and
she is hereby authorized to enter into a contract with Dell Marketing, LP for furnishing a
Microsoft Enterprise License Agreement for a period of one year and ten months.

Section 3. The contract shall be payable through the General Fund, Information
Technology Department budget, in an amount not to exceed $477,540.00 for ten months and in
an amount not to exceed $573,048.00 for an additional one-year, for a total contract amount not
to exceed $1,050,588.00 for the one-year and ten months period.



Resolution No. 2020-72
Page 2

Section 4. That said contract shall be binding upon and an obligation of the Authority
contingent upon future funding, compliance by the contractor with the Specifications and
Addenda, if any; the Affirmative Action Plan adopted by the Board of Trustees; bonding and
insurance requirements and all applicable laws relating to contractual obligations of the

Authority.

Section 5. That this resolution shall become effective immediately upon its adoption.

Adopted: September 15, 2020

President

Attest:

Interim Secretary-Treasurer



Form 100326 Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority
07-03-97 STAFF SUMMARY AND COMMENTS

TITLE/DESCRIPTION: Resolution No.:
CONTRACT: HASTUS SOFTWARE UPGRADE 2020-73
Date:
VENDOR: GIRO, INC. September 10, 2020
AMOUNT:  NOT TO EXCEED $1,314,402.00 Initiator:
Intelligent
Transportation
Systems
ACTION REQUEST:
Approval O Review/Comment O Information Only O Other

1.0

2.0

3.0

4.0

5.0

6.0

7.0

PURPOSE/SCOPE: This action will allow the Authority to enter into a sole source agreement to
upgrade its scheduling and bid dispatch software (“HASTUS") to the most current version (2021).

DESCRIPTION/JUSTIFICATION: The Authority relies on its HASTUS software to manage
operator work performance, scheduling, daily work and payroll. The software has not been
upgraded since 2012. Upgrading to version 2021 will allow the Authority to take advantage of
more than 100 new useful features to enhance its performance and improve operations.

PROCUREMENT BACKGROUND: This sole source contract is exempt from competitive bidding
as authorized under Section 306.43(H)(3) of the Ohio Revised Code. GIRO, Inc. developed this
bid dispatch and scheduling software on a proprietary basis and is the only source for
maintenance and upgrade services. The Intelligent Transportation Systems Department worked
closely with GIRO, Inc. to identify the appropriate requirements and resources assigned to
perform the upgrade. GIRO, Inc. has proposed pricing to the Authority based on their current
standard rates for professional services, including licensing discounts amounting to fifty percent,
for a total amount not to exceed $1,314,402.00. This contract total is approximately 5% less than
the estimate for this purchase.

The Procurement Department requested a proposal from GIRO, Inc. The Intelligent
Transportation Systems Department reviewed the proposal for adherence to the technical
requirements. A cost analysis was performed and determined the proposed pricing to be fair and
reasonable to the Authority.

AFFIRMATIVE ACTION/DBE BACKGROUND: All Affirmative Action requirements have
been met. A 0% DBE participation goal was established for this procurement due to the

lack of certified DBE firms.
POLICY IMPACT: Does not apply.

ECONOMIC IMPACT: This contract shall be payable from the RTA Development Fund,
Intelligent Transportation Systems Department budget, including but not limited to
Capital Grants, OH-90-X739, OH-90-X782, OH-2018-002 and OH-90-X809 in an
amount not to exceed $1,314,402.00 ($1,051,521.60 in federal funds which represent
80% of the total cost).

ALTERNATIVES: Reject this offer. Rejection of this offer will delay the Authority in upgrading its
bid dispatch and scheduling software, deferring its ability to take advantage of optimal software
with key features and capabilities to maximize its operation.




Staff Summary & Comments 2020-73

HASTUS Software Upgrade
Page 2

8.0 RECOMMENDATION: This project was discussed by the Board of Trustees at the
September 1, 2020 Organizational, Services & Performance Monitoring Committee
meeting. It is recommended that the bid of GIRO, Inc., as negotiated, be accepted and
the resolution passed authorizing the General Manager, Chief Executive Officer to enter

into a contract.

9.0 ATTACHMENTS: None.

Recommended and certified as appropriate to the availability
of funds, legal form and conformance with the Procurement

requirements.

47/%’% ]

Géneral Manager, Chief Execufive Officer




RESOLUTION NO. 2020-73

AUTHORIZING CONTRACT NO. 2020-128 WITH GIRO, INC. FOR HASTUS
SOFTWARE UPGRADE SERVICES IN AN AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED
$1,314,402.00 (RTA DEVELOPMENT FUND, INTELLIGENT
TRANSPORTATION SYSTEMS DEPARTMENT BUDGET)

WHEREAS, the Authority deems it necessary to upgrade its bid dispatch and scheduling
software (“"HASTUS”) from version 2012 to version 2021; and

WHEREAS, the Authority utilizes GIRO, Inc. licensed products for its bid dispatch and
scheduling software applications; and

WHEREAS, this bid dispatch and scheduling software is proprietary to GIRO, Inc,, the
original provider and installer of this software; and

WHEREAS, the offer of GIRO, Inc. located at 75 Port-Royal Street East, Suite 500,
Montreal, QC H3L 3T1, Canada, to provide HASTUS Software Upgrade services was received
on April 7, 2020; and

WHEREAS, the Ohio Revised Code, Section 306.43(H)(3) provides that competitive
bidding is not required when the expenditure is for a renewal or re-negotiation of a lease or
license for telecommunications or electronic data processing equipment, services, or systems,
or for the upgrade of such equipment, services, or systems, or for the maintenance thereof as
supplied by the original source or its successors or assigns; and

WHEREAS, after negotiation, GIRO, Inc. has agreed to perform the required services in
an amount not to exceed $1,314,402.00; and

WHEREAS, the General Manager, Chief Executive Officer deems the offer of GIRO, Inc.
to be the most advantageous to the Authority and recommends acceptance thereof by the
Board of Trustees.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Trustees of the Greater
Cleveland Regional Transit Authority, Cuyahoga County, Ohio:

Section 1. That the offer of GIRO, Inc., as negotiated, to provide HASTUS Software
Upgrade services, be and the same is hereby accepted.

Section 2. That the General Manager, Chief Executive Officer of the Authority be and
she is hereby authorized to enter into a contract with GIRO, Inc. for HASTUS Software Upgrade
services.

Section 3. This contract shall be payable from the RTA Development Fund, Intelligent
Transportation Systems Department budget, including but not limited to Capital Grants, OH-90-
X739, OH-90-X782, OH-2018-002 and OH-90-X809 in an amount not to exceed $1,314,402.00
($1,051,521.60 in federal funds which represent 80% of the total cost).

Section 4. That said contract shall be binding upon and an obligation of the Authority
contingent upon future funding, compliance by the contractor to the Specifications and
Addenda, thereto, if any; the Affirmative Action Plan adopted by the Board of Trustees; bonding
and insurance requirements; and all applicable laws relating to the contractual obligations of the
Authority.



Resolution No. 2020-73
Page 2

Section 5. That the Greater Cleveland Regional Transit Authority's Board of Trustees
expects that GIRO, Inc. will attempt to exceed the 0% minimum DBE goal assigned to this

procurement.

Section 6. That this resolution shall become effective immediately upon its adoption.

Adopted: September 15, 2020

President

Attest:

Iinterim Secretary-Treasurer



zjoz adey

%00°00T %ED'BY W68 $  OBB'ESL'EBT §  TO9ISV'ELZ §  %O0000T %I0'19 6E8'9S0VT  §  ISTTPO'EZ  §  066'L60°LE §
%18V %15°v8S SL8'E96'66 891'201°LT £60°990'LYT %L8'LY %YT'Y90T  9EBTET'T TT2'625°T LY0°LSL'LT
%0E'EE - +LL'890°T6 - v44'890'16 REL'OY - 898'9€€'LT - 898°9€€'L1T
%S8'0 %bL'9T 25568y $89'0€8'T LET02ET %IED {%606°59} {88y 122) L80'9E€E 665911
%120 %8 T6Y 10£'s8Y 0£9'86 1L6'€8S %8v°0 . 6vL°9LT - 6vL'9LT
%IEL %9L'TS 196'£06°9 6E0°ZB0'ET 000°000°0Z %00°0 - (6£0°260°T) 6€0'260'T -

%8L°0 (%¥6°6) (pve'es) 18£'8€8 LE0'SSL %50°0 (%05°08) {1s1'8L) $80°L6 YEE'ST
%58°0 %6188 1£9'560'T €6E'THT'T VZO'BEE'T %0E'0 - £68'60T - 168'601
%00'T %0S'€ SLY'T6 9TTIPIT TOL'EEL'T %ET0 (%80°65) {vzz'oer) BET'20L $16'T8
%Z0°0 (%1€°25) (€922} ¥98'8€ET 1€2'99 %100 (%99'06) (1v98€) 129°cy 086'€

%220 {%s0°0T) {eeg'99) 98£'659 BUY'EES %80'0 (%9z°0L) {zov'99) vis'v6 L0T'82
%L0°0 (%7208} (zsz'08) SEE'T9T ¥80'181 %900 (%26'v) {eLr'n) LY8'ET vL9'72
%ET'O %20°8Z 649'9L 00L'€LZ 6LE'0SE %000 - {oos'tz) 00412 -

%950 %L6°LT BT0'5EZ OpS'LOE'T 8S6ZYS'T %L0'0 %95°6€ 169°L 95¥'61 ESTLZ
%E6'6Y (%vE'T) (TIp'158'7) SVE'TOY'SET LEG'GYS'SEL %9 LY (%s1'2) (811°98¢) 9Z'816'LT 8LLZES LT
%EG'EY (s%ve°t) {TTY'158'7) 8YETO'SET 1£6'6Y5'9ET %9T'LY (%s1°2) (811'98¢) 9vT'8T6'LT 8TTZES LT
%929 {%01°€E) {Lx2'eev's) BE1'609'5Z TZ6'TET'LT %59V {%v1°6%) (559'899°1) 955°S6E'E T06°92L'T
%80T {%sgrot1) (899265} ST6'9YSE LYT'6v6'T %88'0 [F322:15] (199v02) £68'7ES zeL'sze
%650 %ET'ET YOE'TOE 9£9'208'T 086'€09'T %6E'0 (%98'85} {ovo’g02) 000°05€ 000'v¥1
%0E'0 - £08'808 - £08'808 %20'0 - 156'9 - 156'9

%58°T (%S€E9v) (6vY'ESE'Y) BZYEIY'S 6L1'050°S %EV'T {%11°9%) (991'e59) 969'Z86 0£$'6ZS
%9V'T (%LL:0v) (L0z'929'%) ¢ GIE'SVE'TT  §  ZIL'6TL'9 $ %6l (%90°€S) {62£'T18) $  L96'62§T $  88IBIL $
Wi0L40 %  IDONVHI% FINVIHYA 178 AaLA WIOL40%  3ONVHI% FINVIYYA HINOW HINOW
INTHHND 6107 0zoz AN3YHND YA ¥OId AINFHHND

6T0Z ‘TE 1SNONV ANV 0202 ‘T€ 1SNONV GIONT A0IN3d IHL YOS

ANNZ TYYINID - HVIAHOIdd OL GIUVAINGD QaAIFD3Y HSYD 40 1¥0d3Y

ALIBOHLNY LISNVHL TYNOIOIY ANVIIAITO YILVIYD IHL

Joday anuanay

QNN IVE3NGD - G3A13)34 HSYD V101

HSYD 40 SI0UNO0S YIHLO ONY SININISUNEWIIY TvioLans
1DV S3HVD Tvu3aad
SLdi303¥4 SNO3NVTIDSIN
IDNVISISSY ONILYHIHO TWH3G3d
{HOLYIN Tv201 31VLS “TVH3034) IONYNILNIVIN IALLNIAZYED
(HOLV TYD0 ‘ILVLS “IYH3G33) LNIWISUNGNIIY LNVHD
SONNZ3Y XV.L INYOU4/ONI/ 13N

‘HSV3 30 $3I8N0S Y3HI0 (N SINIWISENEaWIIE

3NNIATY YIHIO0 W10LENS
¥IHLO
JWOONI LSIHILNI
INOONI WINIY
SNOISSHNWOD $S31 SLHOI DNIWYN
SNOISSININOD/SNOISSIINOI/DNISILYZAQY
FNNIAIY BIHIO

S31AISENS ONILYVYILO VLoL8NS
X¥43SN 8 S3TVS
‘S3IAISFIS ONILVYIdO

STV BIDNISSYd WL0LENS
ONILINDIL FHEOW
Ssvd-n
SQYVYIIYVL INIANLS - ASWD
S3TVS LINDIL/SSVd
S3UV4 HSVD

SIIVI UIONTSSV



Z4o 1 aded

%ET'EOE %IL'6Y OEE'06T'06 §  TOIIBY'ELT §  TLTTIGL'EST $  %00°00T %T6'HS PYS'IST'ET  § 066'L60°LE  §  9yt'ove'Er  §
%08'62T %L8'E8L 6YETZ8'E0T £00'990°LTT $69°VYT'ET %L8'LY %PI'6IST  05£°099°9T LY0'LSL LT £69°960'T
%L46'00T - Y£L'890'16 vLL'890°'T6 - %EL'IY - 898'98€'LT 898'9EE'LT -

%LST %LL'0EET ¥90'851'Z LET'OLE'T £L1'291 %TE0 %16'v8T 928'v8 66S'YTT £LL'6T
%590 - TL6'E8S 1L6'E8S - %8Y°0 - evL9LT 6vL'9L1 -

%817 %YL19 LYT'885'L 000'000'0Z ESLTIV'TT %00°0 - {s62'se0’1) - $62560"T
%80 %EV'ILT 668°18Y LE£0'SSL BET'ELT %500 (%p10v) {969°ZT) VEG'ST 0£9'T€
%65'T %66°L8Y y6E'OrE'T VZO'8EE'T OE9'L6E %OE'0 - £68'601 £68'601 -

%EQ'E (%28'1€) (6€£'SL2'T) TOL'EEL'T 0vb'600'y %0 (%£9'68) (£58°68v) ¥16'18 TLLTLS
%L0°0 (%10°56) (s90'29Z'1) 1€2'99 962'82€'T %100 (%20°66) {s0L's0v} 086'¢ 689°£0p
%99°0 %E0'S 874 6YDE6S PEO'SIS %80°0 (%2£2'59) (pes'es) L0T'82 19508
%020 (%01°9¢) (z82'z01) $80'181 99E'E8T %90°0 (s%1e°21) {e81'e) ¥L9'T2 J3:3-14
%6E°0 (%18'v2) (8E9'5TT) 6LE'0SE L10'981 %000 - {8v6'9g) - 806'9¢
%ILT %L8'2T TEV'SLT 8SSTYS'T 9ZL'99€E'T %L0°0 %2S'EE 918’9 €S1°L2 LEE0T
%0p'1ST (%18°2) {£92'1v6'¢) LE6'6YS'ET YOT'16V'0VT %9T'LY (%19°€) {€89'959}) STTTES LT 1I8'981'81
%0V TST {%18°2) {£92"1¥6'e) LE6'6YS'IET $0Z'T6Y"0VT %9T' LY (%19°€) {€89'959) 8ZICES'LT 118'881°81
%00'6T (%06°2€) {eT0'viv's) TZ6'TEL'LT PEG'SYS'ST %59'Y (%22°45) {997°79€°7) 106°92L'T £91'680'Y
WLUE (%vZ'v) {09’01} LYT'sve't LL8'6L0°E %88'0 {oszvee) {¢9L'por) TET'8LE 666'C6Y
%8L'T %91'8T £95'9p2 086'£08"T LIV %6E'0 (%eLge) (e82'€L) 000'YbT €82'LTZ
%06°0 {o6va'8L) (86£'€10°€) £€08'308 109°228's %200 {%99°86) (££6'v09) 156's 888'119
%09°S (%08°vE) (195'569°7) 6L1'050's ovL'svL'L %EV'T {%6Z°L5) (6ee0TL} 0€5'625 698'6€2"T
%SY'L (%9562} (9ss'oz8z)  §  TIL'ETLY S 86T'0vS'S $  %YE'T (%6°28) (8£6'808) $  8BI'SIL $  9erLEst $

WLIOL30%  JONVHI% FINVINVA [I7Y 139008 QLA WIOL40%  3ONVHI% FINVIBYA HINOW HINOW
ANTHEND ozoz 0702 ANIHEND AN3YYND 13nane

GNNd TY¥INED - 139018 O1 GIUV4INGD G3AIIIIH HSYD 40 L8043y

0207 ‘1€ 1SNONV Q3AN3I Q0IY3d 3HL Y04

ALIHOHLAY LISNVEL TYNOIDIY ONVIIATI) ¥ILVIYO IHL

uoday snusasy

GNNZ TVHINID - GIAZ03Y HSYD 1oL

HSYD 30 SIDUNOS ¥IHLO0 ONV SINIWIASHNEWIIY TvLOLI8NS
1DV $34YD Tvy3a34
SLd13D3¥ SNOINVTIIOSIN
FONVLSISSY ONILYHIJO TW¥3033
{HOLVIN TvD01 ‘31VLS “TWY3Q33) IDNYNILNIVIN IALLNIATY
(HOLVIN TWD01 ‘31VLS “Iv¥3A34) LNINISHNBINIZY INVYHD
SANNI3Y XYL INVIO¥/OND/ 1N

HSYD 40 S33UN0S 4IHI0 GNV SINGWNISEENIEE

3NN3ATY ¥3IH10 W1018NS
¥3IHLO
JWOINI LSIUILNY
INODN! TVINIY
SNOISSHIAINGD $531 SIHOIY ONIWYN
SNOISSHAWOD/SNOISSIINOI/ONISILYIAGY
3NNFAIY YIHIO

$3181SANS ONILVHEILO Tv1018NS
XVL3SN B SIS
*5310158, INLLYYIdO

$3HVd HIONISSVd TVL0LENS
ONLLINOLL 3NSOW
$Svd-n
SAHVIIUVI INIANLS - SN
$3IV5 13NDIL/SSVd
S3UVd HSVD




%290
%S.L°0
%S2'0
%LET

%10
%SL°0
%100
%S0
%010
%S0
%SC0
%0LL
%SL0

%4570

%0L¢C
%0L¢
%04°¢
%01°¢
%100

aI3IA ALRINLYIN 1S3YHLINI
JOVHIAY OL SAVA Qa3NHIOV

861

[ T —

oGy

L£9

cle
16
b

HOVHIAVY

7241 999°068°2$
03 91£'16$
0$ 06£'608'9%
vZ6$ 000'000°1$
889°25¢ 029°012°62L$
0% cov'cee'ss
0$ LOE'v$
0$ tyy'zoL$
0$ SLL'0LS
0$ £ve'eeL'16$
0% v01'9£9'9c$
889'/6$ 000'629'c$
0% LLO'PLLS
LiY'v6$ 916'9.8'v1$
z82'6e$ 99¢'699'L$
§v8'c$ iy ipes
LIP'ELS $9€'612%
££6'ceS Gl6'299'L$
0$ 66.°'109'01%
IVdIONINd
vi0lL

b
b
2601

9g6

8lil

474

LS
}

SAVQ

WyEL

240 | sbey

ANVE ASM
OIHO 40 31vis
MNVE NOLONILNNH

MUNVE A3
HNVE NOLONLLNNH
MNVE ATA
ANVE ONd
OIHO 40 31VLS
OIHO 40 31vls
SNVIOOIN 1341LS
ANVE AIM

MNVYE NOLONILNNH
YNV NOLONILNNH
HNVE NOLONILNNH
MNVE NOLONIINNH
ANVE NOLONILNNH

NOILLNLLLSNI

H03 A3M 0coz/tie

OIHO Yvis 0coe/Lie

OWTHA Leoe/aLre

d03 ASM 0coe/iie
INNODJV Xv1 S31VS 0coc/Lie
ANNd ALINILOV 33A0TdNT 020z/t/6
AN AGNOIN MO0UMOVg 0coz/iie
SIUVYO-OIHO ¥V.S 0coc/Lie
OIHO ¥v1s 0coe/Lie

OWTH4 0¢0c/8ei6

IHNAIN AZM-LOOV INVHOHIW  0202/1/6

WNINZYd HOd 7119 AMNSY3YL 1202/0¢/L 1
WNINZY ¥O4 7118 AMNSYIYL 2202/1LE/S
WNINZYd Y04 1118 AYNSY3AYL  L20Z/Le/s
WNINTYd HO4 TG AYNSYIYL 0202/0€/1 1

LIHEVYIN ASNOW 0coe/Lie
LNINNLLSNI 31va
ALRINLYIN

0202 ‘L¢ LSNONV 40 SY
SLNIWLSIANI AUNSYIYL 40 AHOLNIANI
ALIMOHLNY LISNVYL TYNOIDEY ANVIIATTO ¥ILVYIHD

0coe/Le/8
0cog/iers
8l0¢/ee/T

0coe/ies
0coerers
VAVARAY
ocoecrie/s
0coc/ier8
0coz/ie8
£102/8¢2/8
0coc/iers

aNNH 3ONVYENSNI TV.L0L

ANNd JONVAINSNI

aNN4 Tvd3NT9 TV.LOL

aNN4 IVY3INID

aNNd AINJWFHILIYH ONOE TV.LOL

610¢/8/9
6102/8/5
6102/8/5
610¢/8/5
0coz/iers

3lva
ASVYHOUNd

ANNd LNTFWI3HIL3Y aNO8

anNnd



%8Y°0

%280
%S¢0
%SL0
%081
%v9L
%LLL
%¥9'C
%0LL

%810

%SL'0
%420

%520
%SL°0

%LL0
%SL0
%S0
%SL0
%SC0
%GL°0
%S20
%¥9'L
%e€0°¢

%S2°0
%S¢0
%SL0

69

TAA
i4%°]
Ly8
Ge
8¢

g e = o

4%}

}
1

96.°28¢$

£50°8vLS

0%

0%
956'L1$
£88'8$
8LL'evS
809'97%
8zg'ies

0$

0$
0$
0$
0$
199°18%

0$
£88'8$
8LL'CL$

0%
0%

Q73IA  ALRINLVIN LS3HIALNI

HOVHIAV Ol SAVA d3anyoov
JOVHIAY

00LLLY'pYEs

092'686'Z$
55 088'2S

125'08$ |
££.'666'1$
S/1'160'S$
000'000'c$
08.',£6'2$
000'000'Z$

L98'vLL LS

L98'vLL LS
£90°¢8Z°L$

v26'22Z'1$
6E1'GG$

0ev'see 9es
L18°1018
102'801$
L1T'EL0'TS
G69'L1E'9%
viS'peS
069'6¥L LIS
SL1°160'6$
000°626'v$

S8E'vPe
786'ch$
zovs
TVdIONIHd
TWiOL

Z 40 7 abed

b OIHO 40 31V1s OIHO d"v1s 0coz/iie
} ANVE ATdM HO3 AT 0coeiiie
oL6 SNVIOJIN 134ILS 8044 [AATAIA
vol SNVIODIN 134ILS g044 gcoeivelt
LE0}L SAYIODIN 134ILS 4044 ceoe/seliL
££8 SNVT0DIN 1341LS g1H4 020¢/S/0L
G601 SAVIOJIN 134ILS ONIHA 020¢/82/6
b ANVYE A3 HO3 A 0coc/iie
I OIHO 40 31V1S OIHO dv1s 0c0oe/Li6
2 ANVE AN d03 AGM 0coc/Li6
I ANVE A3 d03 AGM-NISVE HOLVO 0coe/Lie
} ANVE AT HO3-INVHO 0coz/iie
b AUNVE AN HO3 AIH-HOLYIN VD01 0coz/iie
b OIHO 40 31VviS OIHO ¥VLS-HOLVY Tv201 0¢0c/L/e
} MNVE A3M d0d A3M-100V 193a 6102 0coc/iig
b OIHO 4O 31vl1S OIHO ¥V1S-100V 1830 6102  020Z/L/6
vl SNVIOOIN 134ILS 8044 €c0e/vell
(17X4 MNYE NOLONILNNH d0 VINIOE-100V 1930 6102  0202/8/6
b OIHO 40 31V1S OHO Yv1s 0coe/iie
b dIIMS-HINYE ATA ANINIOHOANT MV 0coceliie
SAvd NOLLNLILSNI LNINWNULSNI ERAfe
WYL

SANNd TV TVLOL

aNNd INHFSIH TVL0L
0cae/ies
ocoe/ieis
0coe/oz/e
0coc/Liie
610c/ereL
810¢/2e/9

L10¢/8¢/6 aNN4 IAYISTY

AN TVLIdYO V1Y TVLO0L

0coc/ie8 aNNd VLIdYD V1Y

ONNd NOISN3d TV.LOL

0coerLen

TAVARR ONNd NOISN3d

ONNd HOLYWW “TYO0T TV.LOL
0coe/1e/8
0coz/iers
0coc/ie/8
0coc/ie8
0zcoe/Lerns
0coc/iers
0coc/LLie
6locrelict

ANNd HOLYIN V001
ONNd LNIW3OHOINT MV TV.LOL

0coe/Lers
0zZ0¢/ie/8  GNNF LNSWIDHOLNT MY
ailvad aNnd

ALRINLVIN 3SVHOAN

0Z0Z ‘L€ 1SNONV 4O SV
SLINIWLSIANI AUNSVYIYL 40 AHOLNIANI
ALRMOHLNY LISNVY.L TYNOIDIY GNVYIIAITD HILVIYUD



Sv9'Le€°L$

VLL'PYZTLS
jusuisinay puog

00°012°'252°91$ | 00°698°80¥°EL$ | 00°000°09S0L$  00°SS8'8H8'ZS 00'ss8'gve‘zs | 00°0% 00'558'8¥8'Z$  00°000°028°9L1%
00°000'S0¥'2 00'000°G659'L 00°000°606 00'000°052 00°000'0S2 000 00'000'05/ 00°000'000'0¢
00°00L'092 00°050's8¢ 00°000°0L 00050's.¢ 00050'6/¢ 000 00050'5.¢€ 00°000'010'GL
00°006'050'G 00°0Sv'0/6' 00'000'068' 00°0S¥'080'L 00°05#'080'L 000 00°0S¥'080'L 00°000'0S¢ vv
00'098's5S 00°0€6'LPS 00°000°'0¥S 00'0e6'. 000¢6'.L 000 00°0e6'. 00°000'0¥S
00059'859'¢c 00'6z8'95¢e'e 00°000's50°' 00'sz8'Loe o0o'sze'ioe 000 00'62Z8'L0e 00°000'09¢'ct
0000zZ'228' 00°009'c6¥7'e 00°000'09L' 00°009'cee 00'009'¢cee 000 00°009'cee 00°000°099'ctL
0Z02 0zoz/LieL 0cociiiel 0zoz/Lizl 0202/119 020Z/L/9 0zoziie 61L02/LIZ1
judwaiinbay | puswalinbay jel1qefey Jolqehey pusawaiinbay Je1qehed Ja1qehed Buipueising
3qoQ jejol 991MBS g2 rediouid }s9493Uj LTV ETSB T Y| jedioulyg }saio)u] ediound |ejo}

0Z0Z ‘L€ 1SNONV 40 SY
SNLVLS ANV 3TNAIHOS FDIANES 1830
ALIMOHLNY LISNVYL TYNOIDIY ANVIIATTO HILVIND

paiinbay spisy 18S AjUjUON

(0Z0z 104 op1sy 18g) eouejeg Jusing

6€0Z 9=Q
L€0g sunr
¥e0¢ 2@
020z 0°Q
G20e veQ
L€0¢ 8@
aed
funien
jeuid

spuog [e101
‘oY Xe| S9|eS-610Z SOu8S
‘ABY Xe] $8|eg-910Z s8uesg
'ADY XB] $8|BS-GLOZ SOUaS

"AOY Xe] $9jeS-gyL0g Sausg
"A9Y XB $9[eS-YiL0Z Seusg

‘AOY XB] $8|eg-ZL0Z SeleS
spuog



%6L0 %8¢°0
%vS’L %l2e %ce¢ 088'918'Z$
%ecS’L %SGLL %00¢ 6v6°Zes
%LEL %E8’L %S90C EVE'LSTS
%0v'L %v6’L %ELT zey'ooes
%0v'1L %L0°C %lcT 606°22Z$
%Syt %9L°¢C %¥yce 189°122%
%S¥'L %9¢'¢ %leT vi1'60e$
%SG°L %EEC %62°¢ viL'zees
%SS L %l¥'e %CET 605°'092$
%S9°L %Sy %62°¢ 880'v02$
%591 %Lv'T %622 Gv0'Z6L$
%S %Sy¢ %9¢'T €0€'651$
%SL1L %P %6¢'¢C €08'€6L$
# Q13IA # Q13IA (R ETN (CEINELE]
13MYVIN  QUVANVYLS 3I9VHIAY  LSIHILINI

6102

LL9'SSP'EpLS

vEL'PP0'SSLS
9/9'206'961$
161'8.8'2¥1$
191'926'v51L$
85¥'269'2S1L$
681'€LL'8G1L$
LLL'v20's61L$
1€£2'868'65L$
89€'2¢9'1Ci$
1GL'€09'22L$
18Z'60L'v2L$
LLL'66ELLLS
JONVIve
IOVHIAY

%180

%LEQ

%100
%100
%L0°0
%100
%100
%010
%ZC’lL
%671
# QT3IA

13RVIN GUVANVLS 39VH3IAV

%L2°0

%06°0

%l 0
%0€°0
%ES0
%LL0
%10}
%SCL
%ES'L
%99'L
# Q13IA

pigIA Aeq £ pung Asuop Ainsess] SN sienba piaiA 19BN #

‘sfiig Ainseal ) yjuow g Joj spiaiA Jusjeainbe uodnoo sbessae Buinopy #

A"

%8¥°0
%YL 0
%S0
%980
%LiL
%61
%E6'L
%6t
anziA

X3AN! (43aNN) ¥Y3A0 SATIIA IOVHIAVY VLY

9v6'9.6'L$

L21'66%
geL'gels
€Ly'602$
G0L'PETS
088'v9e$
(AN 147
£€0'LL1L$
£98'00€$
QaNdv3E

LSIFAUILINI

0202

0202 ‘1€ 1SNONY HONOWHL 31VA OL ¥VIA
JONVINHOLHId INIJIWLSIANI 40 AUVINNNS

ALIRMOHLNV LISNVYHL TYNOIDIY ANVIIATTO ¥ILYIYO

G60'92Z'S.L

¥£8'e51°2€2$
L12°18'122%
Lyy'ves'zLTS
000'09€'281$
000'022'051$
000'sgL'eSL$
005'9¢e’LrL$
000's20'€S1L$
dONVIve
JOVHIAY

31va Ol "V3A

H¥38W303d

H39INIAON

4390100

438WN31d3s

lsnony

ATNe

anNnr

AVIA

HdV

HOYVIN

AdvNdg3ad

AUVANVT
HINOW



91°155%

91'86¢$

68°0L$
68013

99'692'8¥1$
99°Gov'vLL$
91'096'€L$
91G8o'l$
006.8°L1$

81°2,2'G95%
Zr'8yy'e65$
66'901 '82$
91§
06'606'61$
ov'6.$
€8'6L1'8%
¥0'0$

6V'69€'v0L$

€€'GBS'POLS
cLLLS
FANYES

€ 4o | abed

31VQa OL ¥v3A 6102
31vQd Ol ¥v3aA 0202
0coz Lsnonv

31vd Ol dv3A 6102
41vd Ol ¥v3A 0202
0¢oc Lsnonv

31vd Ol dv3aA 6102
31vd Ol ¥v3A 0202
0¢0Z Lsnonv

31vd OL ¥v3A 6l0C
31vad OL ¥v3A 0202
0¢0Z Lsnonv

020z 1snonv

OIHOYVLS
aNNd LNJINFOHOINT MV

OIHOYV1S
OWTH4
GNNd IONVINSNI

LIMHVYIN ASNOW-LNNODDY LNVHOHIN
UBIH STUVO-OIHO "vY.LS

1INNODIV d33IMS MNVE AIA
OIHOYVLS

LNNODIV XVL STTVS-NOLONILLNNH
GNN4d TVY3INTD

LIMEVIN ASNOW NOLONILNNH
aNNd LNIWIHIL3Y aNog

(Sisvd HSV9) SONINYVI LNIWLSIANI NO 1HOdIY
ALIMOHLNY LISNVYL TVYNOID3Y ANVIIATTO HILVIND



G9'651'c9$
v8'Z0v'651L$
S TAVARS
AR

96'129%
88°061%
8E'L$
8e'l%

L0°'16G'6$
61°6€0°CL$
€5'v0c$
PR
90'v0€$

90°€LL'L9Z8
LE'ELO'BLYS
G9'820°9$
9€GI$
8E°0GY'¥$
16°29G'LS

¢ jo z abey

31vd Ol "v3A 6102
31vd Ol ¥v3A 0202
0¢0Z Lsnonv

31VvQa OL ¥v3A 6102
31vA Ol ¥v3A 020C

020¢ 1snonv

31vQ OL ¥v3aA 6102
31vQd Ol ¥v3A 0202
0¢0Z L1snonv

31vQa OL ¥v3A 6102
31va OL ¥Vv3A 0202
0coz Lsnonv

020z 1snonv

LNNODJIV dIAMS MNVE AIA
aNN4d TVLIdVD vid

LIAEVIN ASNOIN MNVE AN
INNOJDV ALIALLOV 33A0TdINT

INNODDV dI3MS MNVE A3M
OIHOYWV1S
aNNd NOISN3d

ANNODIV dIIMS MNVE AIN
1930 6102-OIHOYVYLS
OIHOYVLS

aNNd HOLVIA V001

(SisSvE HSVD) SONINYVI LNJINLSIANI NO LHOdIY
ALIMOHLNY LISNVYL TYNOIDIY ANVIIATTO ¥ILVIHD



¢ jo ¢ abed

LLL %870 'SLNINLSIANI NO QT13IA IOVHIAY
$60'922'SLL$ v€8'S51'zeT$ (1$00) JONYIVE INIWLSIANI IOVHIAY
G¥6'9.6'L$ L11'66% :a3NYV3 INOONI LSTHILNI
96.'28¢$ 96.'28¢$ 'ONIONT
(1zz'ees) (ee9'sees) ‘ONINNIO3g
1STHALNI GINYOIY
69€'256'L$ 900'G5$ (SISva HSVYO) 3AIZ03Y LSTHILNI
alva oL 1snonv
UVIA 0202
18'0v5°695°L$ ALVQ OL ¥VIA 6102
6£'695'256°L$ A1Va OL ¥VIA 0202
21°900'55$ 020z 1SNONY SANN4 TV TVLOL
8€'066'607 31VQ OL ¥V3IA 6102
09'558'ZEVS 21va OL ¥Y3A 0202
S5 706'9% 0202 1SNONY
8903 LNNOODY dIIMS %NVE A
18'€06'9% OIHOYYLS
aNNd 3ANISTY
0202 1SNONV

(SISVE HSVD) SONINY¥YI INIFWLSIANI NO LHOdIY
ALIMOHLNYV LISNVYL TVYNOIDIY ANVIIAITO ¥3LVIHD



b
ALRNLVIN
JOVHIAVY

%8Y'0
%20°}
%89')
%SL0
%SZ0
%S.0
%200
aT3iA
JOVHIAY

%00°001
%20°C
%L8°L1
%C6'C
%ELLL
%.0°0
%6EY
viol

40 LN30¥3d

LeL'oov'vres
00°000'000°G$
000'0¥6'82$
Gl1'e65'6$
9€5'086'681$
Gv8'z9L$
gee'oeL'ols
INNOWV
30vd

669'LLY'vPe$
00°000'526'¥$
6.6'610'62$
GL1'c65'6$
9€5'086'681$
Gv8'zoLs
geeoeLoLs
IVdIONId

0202 ‘1€ 1SNDNV 40 SV

OI704180d LNIW.LSIANI 40 NOILLISOdINOD

Olj0J310d JUBWISIAU] [BJO L
jaded |B1osswiwo)
S9IJLINY8S JUSWIUIBADD) ‘SN
JUNO22Y ajey Upaln sbuluieg
OoIyQ Jes
Junoooy deamg Mueg Aoy
JUNO20Y 19Nl AsUoW
juawngsuj



